
 

General Business                                       Lower Saucon Township                                                May 7, 2014 

& Developer                                                      Council Agenda                                                            7:00 p.m. 
 

 
I. OPENING 

 A. Call to Order 

 B. Roll Call 

 C. Pledge of Allegiance 

 D. Announcement of Executive Session (if applicable) 

 E. Public Comment Procedure 

   

II. PRESENTATIONS/HEARINGS  

 

III. DEVELOPER ITEMS 

      
IV. TOWNSHIP BUSINESS ITEMS 

A. Jason Miller – 2757.5 Wassergass Road – Stormwater Waiver Request 

B. Lou Militana – AAQS – Update on Proposal for Odor Investigation 

C. Lutz-Franklin Schoolhouse – Recommend Award of Exterior Painting Bid 

D. Saucon Valley Conservancy Lease Agreement & 5-Year Plan 

E. Saucon Valley Community Center – Approval of 2014 Summer Recreation Program Agreements 

F. Request Approval of Summer Work Hours for Public Works Department 

G. Resolution #51-2014 – Authorizing Transfer of Monies  

H. Resolution #52-2014 – Recognizing the 21
st
 Annual Relay for Life 

I. Request to Advertise Bids for Polk Valley Park Pavilion 

      

V. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS ITEMS 
A. Approval of April 16, 2014 Minutes 

     

VI. PUBLIC COMMENT ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 

 

VII. COUNCIL & STAFF REPORTS   
 A. Township Manager 

 B. Council 

 C. Solicitor 

 D. Engineer 

 E. Planner  

 

VIII. ADJOURNMENT 
Next EAC Meeting:  May 13, 2014 

Next Saucon Valley Partnership:  May 14, 2014 @ SVSD 

Next Zoning Hearing Board Meeting:  May 19, 2014 

Next Council Meeting:  May 21, 2014 
Next Planning Commission Meeting:  May 22, 2014 

Next Park & Rec Meeting:  June 2, 2014 

Next Saucon Rail Trail Oversight Commission Meeting:  June 23, 2014 @ LST 
 

 

 

www.lowersaucontownship.org 



 
General Business                                             Lower Saucon Township                                                May 7, 2014 

& Developer                                                          Council Minutes                                                            7:00 P.M. 
 

 
I. OPENING 

 

CALL TO ORDER:  The General Business & Developer meeting of Lower Saucon Township Council 

was called to order on Wednesday, May 7, 2014 at 7:05 P.M., at Lower Saucon Township, 3700 Old 

Philadelphia Pike, Bethlehem, PA with Mr. Ron Horiszny, presiding.     

   

 ROLL CALL:  Present:  Ron Horiszny, President; Tom Maxfield, Vice President; Dave Willard and 

Priscilla deLeon, Council members; Jack Cahalan, Township Manager; Leslie Huhn, Assistant Manager; 

Linc Treadwell, Township Solicitor; Judy Stern-Goldstein, Township Planner; Brien Kocher, Township 

Engineer.  Absent:  Glenn Kern, Council member. 

  

 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

 ANNOUNCEMENT OF ANY EXECUTIVE SESSION (IF APPLICABLE) 

 

Mr. Horiszny said Council did meet in Executive Session this evening.  Attorney Treadwell said they 

discussed two tax assessment appeals filed with Northampton County Court.  The first for the Route 378 

shopping center and the second for 1509 Jakes Place.  As a result of the Executive Session, if Council so 

chooses, he will need a motion to settle both of those tax appeals in the manner that was discussed. 

 

MOTION BY: Mrs. deLeon moved for approval to settle the tax assessment appeals for the Route 378 

shopping center and 1509 Jakes Place.  

SECOND BY: Mr. Maxfield 

 Mr. Horiszny asked if anyone had any comments or questions?  No one raised their hand. 

ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Absent – Mr. Kern) 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT/CITIZEN AGENDA ITEMS 

 Mr. Horiszny said if you are on the agenda, you have Council and Staff’s undivided attention.  If you do 

choose to speak, we ask that you use one of the microphones.  He asks that you give your fellow public the 

courtesy of the floor.  We ask that you state your name for the record so the transcriptionist knows who is 

speaking in the minutes.  If you are up at the table, please speak into the microphone. 

 

III. PRESENTATIONS/HEARINGS – None 

 

IV. TOWNSHIP BUSINESS ITEMS 

A. JASON MILLER – 2757.5 WASSERGASS ROAD – STORMWATER WAIVER REQUEST 

(7:08 pm) 

 

Mr. Horiszny said the applicant is requesting a waiver of stormwater ordinance requirements due to 

site constraints.  Mr. Kocher went over the draft motion. 

 

DRAFT MOTION FOR WAIVER APPROVALS FOR THE INFILTRATION FACILITY 

DESIGN FOR THE MILLER RESIDENCE GRADING AND STORMWATER 

MANAGEMENT PLAN - 2757.5 WASSSERGASS ROAD, TAX MAP PARCEL Q8-4-14  

 

The Lower Saucon Township Staff offers the following approval motion for consideration by the 

Township Council for the requested waivers of: 

 

Section 137-17.A and B – to allow stormwater in Basin 1 and Trench A6 to drain for up to 120 

hours after the end of the storm, rather than require complete drainage within 72 hours.   

 



General Business & Developer Meeting    

May 7, 2014 
 

Page 2 of 9 

Section 137-17.I(2)(b)a. – to allow infiltration facilities along the driveway to be placed 2.5’ from 

the property line in lieu of the required 10’ distance from the property line.   

For the Miller Residence Grading and Stormwater Plan entitled “25 Acres Property,” as prepared 

by Base Engineering Inc., dated February 20, 2014, no revisions, consisting of seven (7) sheets. 

 

Subject to the following conditions: 

1. The Applicant shall address all other Township Ordinances with their Grading and 

Stormwater Management Plan application, including those items in the review letter dated 

March 6, 2014 prepared by Hanover Engineering Associates, Inc.   

2. All waivers granted shall be noted on the Plans with the applicable section, requirements, 

date of approval, and any conditions of approval. 

 

Mrs. deLeon said this rule was approved and there were reasons it was so why would she want to 

change that?  Mr. Kocher said because of the way this site is and due to a settlement of a lawsuit, 

they have a 15’ easement to for the driveway, so they don’t have a lot of flexibility.  Mrs. deLeon 

said now we’re allowing 2.5 feet and not the required 10’.  Mr. Kocher said any location we can 

physically get 10’, we do.  The option is here because the driveway must go here because the 

infiltration facilities have to be there to capture the stormwater from the driveway and there is no 

way to be 10’ from the property line.   Mrs. deLeon said why was it was not brought up before.  

The neighbors were concerned about run-off issues.    

 

Mr. Ahmet Mukherjee from Base Engineering did the design.  They asked for a waiver that 

pertains to the stormwater facilities that were they were proposing to be within the 15’ wide 

driveway access easement and had they not provided for the infiltration facilities, there would have 

been flooding.  At that point in time they had not asked for this particular waiver but they are now 

because they believe this goes hand-in-hand with the other waiver requested where they were 

asking for relief.  There was a toss-up of which was able to meet the criteria associated with the 

stormwater management facility as against a driveway being no more than 5’ from a property line.  

They believe the stormwater facilities being proposed and designed will accommodate the 

facilities.  As long as it does the job it’s supposed to do, as trying to move the driveway would 

cause more hardship and other issues.  In instances where they would have frontages exceeding 50’ 

or 100’, you are correct, the 10’ would probably be something that you would require, but in this 

case, it does the function and has been met.     

 

Mrs. deLeon said what if this plan doesn’t work?  Mr. Mukherjee said it’s been designed to work 

and reviewed by your Township Engineer and the Conservation District.  Mrs. deLeon said LVPC 

said it wasn’t consistent with their regs.  Mr. Mukherjee said that’s because they did not understand 

the concept.  There has been stringent scrutiny by your Township Engineer.  The same LVPC letter 

said that they do not look at the details of the stormwater management which they leave to the 

Township Engineer.  Mr. Mukherjee said there is a good amount of stormwater management and 

facilities on the top of the property to accommodate new runoff from a volume/water quality 

control.  He explained how the infiltration facilities worked.  He said Mr. Miller has a maintenance 

agreement with the Township and he will inspect it and report to the Township the results of the 

inspection.  Attorney Treadwell said this gives the Township a right, but not the obligation to go in 

there if they believe there’s a problem.   

 

Mr. Maxfield said we’d treat it the same way we’d treat a septic system which they are responsible 

for inspecting and making sure it runs properly.  Attorney Treadwell said we’ve had this situation 

with detention basins.  If they are designed correctly, there’s not a lot the Township can do about it.  

Mr. Maxfield said if you had 10’ instead of 5’, it wouldn’t make it work any better.  The neighbor 

is a cornfield, not a house.  The facilities are better than no facilities at all.   

 

 

 

 



General Business & Developer Meeting    

May 7, 2014 
 

Page 3 of 9 

 

MOTION BY: Mr. Maxfield moved for approval of the waiver for the infiltration facility design and the 

stormwater management plan for the Miller property at 2757.5 Wassergass Road, with the 

condition we asked for before of not paving the road except for what the Township ordinance 

says. 

SECOND BY: Mr. Willard 

 Mr. Horiszny asked if anyone had any comments or questions?  No one raised their hand. 

ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Absent – Mr. Kern) 

 

B. LOU MILITANA – AAQS – UPDATE ON PROPOSAL FOR ODOR INVESTIGATION 

(7:24 pm) 

Mr. Horiszny said Lou Militana is present to review the revisions to his odor investigation proposal 

to Council.  

 

Mr. Militana said he revised the scope of work for the odor investigation.  It wasn’t sufficient to 

spend the money to do any kind of analysis on historical odor events recorded so far.   It’s a clean 

start for the odor investigation where the approach would be to get the citizens trained on how to 

collect and document odor events properly.  It would be a two-part training, the first being a base 

training which goes through the basic introduction to odors, and describing odors properly.  The 

second part of the training would be odor sensitivity training which he would perform.  This is to 

document the nasal sensitivity of the citizens who want to be involved.  They are blindfolded and 

given three pens to sniff in which two are blind pens and one is an odor pen and they have to 

respond which pen is different, if any.  You test until they can detect the odor and repeat the test 

with stronger pens.  It’s a scientific basis to determine who our proper reporters would be, and to 

document odors properly so any investigation going forward would have a good baseline.  Most 

people are sensitive to detecting odors.  He doesn’t think there will be a problem finding enough 

people for this.  He will look for multiple reports of an incident and that may determine where the 

origin of the odor is.   

 

Mr. Willard asked how many people would be trained.  Mr. Militana said he thinks a dozen or less 

but he has to look into that and he will get back with that information.  Mr. Cahalan said you refer 

to these people as odor assessing individuals, who he understands you would do the sensitivity 

testing first.  Let’s say you get 20 or 30 people, is it possible that some are going to flunk the test 

and won’t move on.  Mr. Militana said that is the correct approach.   

 

Mr. Cahalan said once they are trained, can you talk about what they are going to do afterwards?  

Mr. Militana said they would be doing the same kind of things they are doing now in reporting an 

odor but there would be a more standardized form with specific description and intensity of the 

odors as well as documenting time, date, location of the odors.  Mr. Cahalan said who will they call 

when they detect an odor?  Mr. Militana said they will get forms to fill out and complete.  They 

could also call whoever they are calling now.  Most of the information they are documenting will 

be used for the odor rose maps. 

 

Mrs. deLeon said she doesn’t recall seeing anything on the odor chart for landfill odor or gas 

related odor.  Mr. Militana said some of that will come out with the training.  Mrs. deLeon said 

when a resident calls DEP, they can’t give out their address and that’s a big problem.  Mr. Militana 

said that’s when it goes through DEP, but when they run this testing independent of DEP, they can 

put down their address.  Mr. Cahalan said how long a period are you looking at and how many 

reports?  Mr. Militana said he would think six months unless in one month you get 100 reports or 

in the six months you only get 3 reports, then you have to go longer.   

 

Mr. Horiszny asked about the cost of $4,750.  Mr. Militana said that includes the odor sensitivity 

testing, 10 or 12 people and an Internet training of those people.  If there are more people there is 

no additional cost.   It’s the sensitivity testing that you have to buy the kits which would increase if 

you added more people than he assumed.   These are all separate tasks each Council member can 



General Business & Developer Meeting    

May 7, 2014 
 

Page 4 of 9 

look at and then base it on your budget and what you want to spend.  The second task, you need to 

take a look at the previous locations of odors being experienced and try to figure out where to put 

the meteorological monitoring station or they could use the airport data.  The third task is to report 

the odors by those that have been trained and equip them with stainless steel canisters so they can 

collect an air sample where the odor is and then it would be shipped to a lab in California using a 

pre-paid Fed-Ex label that Mr. Militana would provide.   They can also look at other sizes of 

canisters, but regardless of the size of the canister, it still would be $700/sample.  Mr. Cahalan 

asked how many samples would be needed for the study?  Mr. Militana said you should probably 

get six or more samples during an event, and Mr. Militana can look at how many people reported 

that event and make a decision to analyze it or not.  You can also tell the lab in California to hold 

the sample until they hear from Mr. Militana.  The last task is the Odor Investigation Report.     

 

Mr. Willard said if we select one or more of these tasks and then find out where the odor is coming 

from, what action do we take as a result?  Mr. Militana said you have to then turn to PA DEP 

and/or the Township odor ordinances.    

 

Attorney Treadwell asked several questions about the process of collecting the samples and the 

possibility that the industry/property owner says it’s not their odor, and to prove it will basically be 

a say so on a piece of paper that the resident collected the sample and did he do it correctly.  Also, 

what if he needed someone to testify?   Mr. Militana said the person testifying will go by DEP or 

EPA procedures plus the training, the onsite weather data and the mapping and the sample sent to 

California to the experts.  If it’s only one person with a sample, it’s not worth sending the sample.  

Attorney Treadwell could ask St. Croix or Mr. Militana to testify.  

 

Mrs. deLeon said if the resident smells an odor, they don’t realize the procedure with DEP.  They 

should call DEP, your state representative, the Township.  Mr. Militana said if DEP isn’t going to 

do anything, we need to consider what value does this bring if you are spending $20,000.00 and 

can it help the Township with enforcement.  If it doesn’t help it very much, then he wouldn’t spend 

the money. 

 

Attorney Treadwell said for $20,000.00, is there a way to hire an expert to go out to the area where 

we believe the smell is coming from and spend a week there looking around?  This is a process for 

six months and involves a lot of different things.  Mr. Militana said odor experts are few and far 

between and he doesn’t know of anyone local.  The end result is if he does this and gives you a 

report and it points to one or two sources, what can the Township do and is it worth $20,000.00.  

He would recommend the Township to consider that before you retain him to do this.   

 

Mr. Cahalan said with that amount of money for what Mr. Militana is proposing, what could DEP 

do better to assist also?  He found on the internet in another state where the resident can go on line 

and provide their contact information, the odor, strength, pinpoint on a map where they smelled the 

odor and all that information was being collected.  Could DEP step up their game to do something 

better like this?  Mr. Militana said it’s worth asking DEP what they could do.  He thinks there 

would be better recording information if the resident had the training and filled out the form and 

sent it to the Township.  DEP isn’t collecting all that information.   

 

Ms. Donna Louder asked if the people who are being trained will be held personally liable if 

anything comes back and the landowner is rebutting the information.  Can the public get sued as 

well?  Attorney Treadwell said anything is possible; there’s a possibility that could happen.  He’s 

more concerned if Ms. Louder who took the sample, would want to testify for three days about how 

you took the sample and everything else.  Mr. Militana said people who are taking samples are just 

doing that.  They are not making conclusions on where that odor is coming from.  He would make 

the conclusion.  Attorney Treadwell said in the chain you are going to refer to that part of this 

analysis was based on samples that were sent by so and so.  As the attorney for the property owner, 

he is going to question who took the sample and who authorized him to take it.  Mr. Militana said 

that’s correct.  Mr. Maxfield said he too would go for the weakest part which would be the source.  



General Business & Developer Meeting    

May 7, 2014 
 

Page 5 of 9 

We need to consider that.  Mr. Maxfield would like to talk to DEP first and see what they can do 

for us. 

 

Ms. Louder said if you look into the DEP reports, they made notations along Riverside Drive that 

they smell leachate and methane.  Why are we considering $20,000.00 to figure out where the 

smell is coming from when the DEP has it written in black and white in their reports.  Mr. Maxfield 

said the reports cite several sources.  Ms. Louder said leachate doesn’t come from the sewage 

treatment plant.  Mr. Horiszny said if the wind is easterly, it could come from Chrin.  Ms. Louder 

said the odor drops into Steel City.   

 

Mr. Cahalan said DEP does reports and travels around doing an odor patrols.  He read some of the 

comments and observations from an April 10
th
 and 11

th
 DEP report that listed, a sewage odor, wood 

burning odor, gas odor, mulch odor, burning rubber odor, car exhaust and plastic odor, garbage 

odor.  This is what he’s been seeing on the reports and it’s a variety of odors at different places.  

Mr. Maxfield said it’s obvious from the DEP reports that they are not as sure about it as Ms. 

Louder is and they are the experts.   

 

Mrs. deLeon said IESI got an NOV and they referred to construction at a gas well as it wasn’t 

covered.  That goes right down to the Hill Climb and it was documented.  Mr. Maxfield said it was 

not a NOV, it was a noted violation.  He read that noting the violation was enough of a warning 

and it didn’t warrant an NOV.   

 

Mr. Sam Donato, Bethlehem Landfill, he said years ago DEP had a mobile lab available in the 

State of PA and it would come out and spend several days in areas where odors were traced to see 

if they could identify the odors.  That should be checked out.  He added, as to what Mrs. deLeon 

said, they were cited for a non-compliance.  It was done by one of their contractors, it was 

corrected that afternoon, the contractor was reprimanded, and the Project Manager was put on 

notice, and his excuse was the parts were backordered, that’s why they didn’t finish it.  It was 

handled at many levels at the corporation. 

 

Mr. Walter Zagwoski, resident, said he did call IESI two weeks ago and IESI sent someone to his 

house and Al did smell something. 

 

MOTION BY: Mrs. deLeon moved to direct the Manager to call DEP and set up a meeting to discuss odor 

controls and measurements. 

SECOND BY: Mr. Maxfield 

 Mr. Horiszny asked if anyone had any comments or questions?  No one raised their hand. 

ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Absent – Mr. Kern) 

 

C. LUTZ-FRANKLIN SCHOOLHOUSE – RECOMMEND AWARD OF EXTERIOR 

PAINTING BID 

Mr. Cahalan said a bid opening was held on May 1
st
 for the exterior painting work at the Lutz-

Franklin Schoolhouse.  Schedule A had one primer and two finished coats.  Schedule B called for 

two primer coats and two finished coats.  Bennett Painting was the low bidder for Schedule A, but 

he’s recommending they be disqualified because they indicated they would not be removing the 

paint down to bare wood as the specs required.  He’s recommending Walt Simmons for be awarded 

the bid for Schedule B in the amount of $24,500.00.  Fran Robb and Public Works would be 

overseeing the project.  Mr. Cahalan indicated they would be about $1,000.00 short in the budget 

for this and will come back with a transfer of money at the next meeting.   

 

MOTION BY: Mr. Maxfield moved for approval to accept the bid for Schedule B in the amount of $24,500.00 

with Walt’s Professional Painting Inc. 

SECOND BY: Mr. Horiszny 

 Mr. Horiszny asked if anyone had any comments or questions?  No one raised their hand. 

ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Absent – Mr. Kern) 



General Business & Developer Meeting    

May 7, 2014 
 

Page 6 of 9 

D. SAUCON VALLEY CONSERVANCY LEASE AGREEMENT & 5-YEAR PLAN (8:28 pm) 
Mr. Horiszny said the lease for the Heller Homestead property with the Saucon Valley 

Conservancy (SVC) is due to expire on May 31, 2014.  Mr. Cahalan said the SVC provided a 5-

year plan as requested.  Mr. Willard indicated the existing lease allows for two extensions of 20 

years each if Council approves.  He proposes an extension of 20 years.  Mr. Maxfield said he 

thought that was one of our discussion points last time that 20 years was too long.  He’s not in 

favor of 20 years.  If we have a 5-year plan, he would prefer a 5-year lease.  Mrs. deLeon said the 

problem with 5 years is it’s hard to do long-term projects.   

 

MOTION BY: Mr. Willard moved for approval to renew the lease for the SVC for 20-years. 

SECOND BY: Mrs. deLeon 

 Mr. Horiszny asked if anyone had any comments or questions?  No one raised their hand. 

ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Absent – Mr. Kern) 

 

E. SAUCON VALLEY COMMUNITY CENTER – APPROVAL OF 2014 SUMMER 

RECREATION PROGRAM AGREEMENTS 

Mr. Horiszny said the agreements for the Saucon Valley Community Center 2014 Summer 

Recreation program have been prepared for approval.  Mr. Cahalan said this is done annually.  The 

amount is $19,902.00.  The cost for the science/bookworm program held in Seidersville Hall is 

$3,207.92.  Both are budgeted.  It runs from June 24 through August 15 at Town Hall Park and 

Southeastern Park.    

 

MOTION BY: Mr. Maxfield moved for approval to sign the agreement with the Saucon Valley Community 

Center for $19,902.00 and $3,207.92 for the summer recreation programs. 

SECOND BY: Mr. Horiszny 

 Mr. Horiszny asked if anyone had any comments or questions?  No one raised their hand. 

ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Absent – Mr. Kern) 

 

F. REQUEST APPROVAL OF SUMMER WORK HOURS FOR PUBLIC WORKS 

DEPARTMENT (8:38 pm) 

Mr. Horiszny said the Manager is requesting Council approval of the summer work hours for the 

Public Works Department.  Mr. Cahalan said this will begin June 2
nd

 and end on August 31
st
.  The 

hours will be Monday through Thursday from 6:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m.  One full-time Public Works 

employee and one part-time summer helper will work a four-day, ten-hour schedule which will be 

from Tuesday through Friday, which will allow someone to be in the department five days a week 

and to cover the Compost Center on Friday mornings. 

 

MOTION BY: Mr. Maxfield moved for approval of the summer work hours for the Public Works Department. 

SECOND BY: Mr. Willard 

 Mr. Horiszny asked if anyone had any comments or questions?  No one raised their hand. 

ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Absent – Mr. Kern) 

 

G. RESOLUTION #51-2014 – AUTHORIZING TRANSFER OF MONIES (8:39 pm) 

Mr. Cahalan said Resolution #51-2014 has been prepared authorizing a transfer of money of 

$6,000.00 from the account 491.280 – Unpaid Bills Prior Year, to 402.453 – Financial Consulting 

to cover the consulting contract with Bee, Bergvall & Co. for review of our budget process that was 

authorized by Council.  

  

MOTION BY: Mr. Horiszny moved for approval of Resolution #51-2014. 

SECOND BY: Mr. Willard 

 Mr. Horiszny asked if anyone had any comments or questions?  Mr. Willard asked how much 

was in the Unpaid Bills Prior Year account.  Mr. Cahalan said it is $30,000.00 and it’s refunds, 

prior real estate payments after assessment appeals.  There is a balance of money she carries in 

there and that was a likely place to get the $6,000.00 

ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Absent – Mr. Kern) 



General Business & Developer Meeting    

May 7, 2014 
 

Page 7 of 9 

H. RESOLUTION #52-2014 – RECOGNIZING THE 21
ST

 ANNUAL RELAY FOR LIFE 

Mr. Cahalan said Resolution #52-2014 has been prepared to recognize the 21
st
 annual Relay for 

Life to be held in Dimmick Park on May 16
th
 & 17

th 
and it’s a great community event. 

 

MOTION BY: Mrs. deLeon moved for approval of Resolution #52-2014, with thanks from the Council. 

SECOND BY: Mr. Maxfield 

 Mr. Horiszny asked if anyone had any comments or questions?  No one raised their hand. 

ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Absent – Mr. Kern) 

 

I. REQUEST TO ADVERTISE FOR POLK VALLEY PARK PAVILION (8:45 pm) 

Mr. Cahalan said part of the Polk Valley Park previously approved plans was a pavilion to be 

installed.  Council approved the tot lot at a previous meeting.  Due to new regulations from the 

Department of General Services, bidding for the installation of the pavilion is required.  We can’t 

find the Meramec pavilion model that we like in the NJPA price list.  They cover another 

comparable pavilion, but it’s expensive as well as their cost which was $86,000.00.  The Meramac 

cost $33,000.00 and our PW can erect it.  They can’t do the concrete pad and footing.  That has to 

go out to bid.  We’re recommending to put together a bid package specifying we want the 

Meramec pavilion, erected and the concrete pad and footers be installed.   

 

MOTION BY: Mr. Horiszny moved for approval to advertise for bids for the Polk Valley pavilion, which shall 

be the Meramec pavilion or the equivalent of it, as well as the erection, and concrete pad and 

footers be installed 

SECOND BY: Mr. Maxfield 

 Mr. Horiszny asked if anyone had any comments or questions?  No one raised their hand. 

ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Absent – Mr. Kern) 

 

Mr. Kocher went over the park plan with Council and talked about different options for the 

pavilion.  Mr. Cahalan said the composting toilet is not in play as it’s going to the Reading Drive 

Trailhead, so it will only be the pavilion and the tot lot.  Mr. Maxfield asked about the stormwater 

coming off the roof of the pavilion.  Mr. Kocher said it’s fed into the system in the park.                                                      

 

MOTION BY: Mr. Maxfield moved for approval of the layout plan for the pavilion and tot lot from Hanover 

Engineering, as proposed. 

SECOND BY: Mr. Willard 

 Mr. Horiszny asked if anyone had any comments or questions?  No one raised their hand. 

ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Absent – Mr. Kern) 

 

V. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS ITEMS 

 

A. APPROVAL OF APRIL 16, 2014 MINUTES (8:54 pm) 

Mr. Horiszny said the draft minutes of the April 16, 2014 Council meeting have been prepared and 

are ready for Council’s review and approval. 

Mr. Horiszny said he had one correction, page 1, line 34, remove the words “to them” which are 

not needed. 

 

MOTION BY: Mr. Horiszny moved for approval of the April 16, 2014 Council minutes, with corrections. 

SECOND BY: Mr. Maxfield 

 Mr. Horiszny asked if anyone had any comments or questions?  No one raised their hand. 

ROLL CALL: 3-1 (No – Mrs. deLeon; Absent – Mr. Kern) 

 

Mr. Willard commented that he liked the format of the new minutes and he also liked when the 

Council President noted the times.  He asked how the minutes were done as last time we had a 

verbatim one and a short one.  Ms. Huhn said those were samples for Council to review. He asked 

if they are typed verbatim and then you shorten them?  Ms. Huhn said the minutes are edited in the 

transcription process. 



General Business & Developer Meeting    

May 7, 2014 
 

Page 8 of 9 

VI. PUBLIC COMMENT/CITIZEN NON-AGENDA ITEMS  
 Gene Boyer, Saucon Avenue commented about the odors some of the residents are smelling in 

Steel City from the landfill.  He asked if they didn’t believe the fact that there is an odor out there.  

He would assume that’s why you are starting the process to find out where it came from.  Mr. 

Maxfield said it’s a question of identification of where the odor is coming from.  He doesn’t want 

to hear about other odors.  Mr. Horiszny said odors are probably coming from Praxair, the sewage 

treatment plant, BRE, the gas line, and construction at Majestic.  Mr. Boyer said the bottom line 

tonight was you are going to have a discussion with DEP people to try to have them help identify 

the possibilities of odors in the Steel City area and the landfill.  He asked if it would be a public 

meeting?   Mr. Maxfield said no, it’s a meeting of staff with DEP to see what they can learn from 

them and what they can do about it.  Mr. Boyer said DEP has to identify it, and then it’s up to 

Council to do something about it.  Mr. Cahalan talked about the chart of complaints from 

December 2012 to date and that showed there were 14 complaints.  One was attributed to IESI; one 

to the sewage treatment plant; two to BRE; three to burn barrels and woodstoves in Steel City; and 

in seven of the complaints they couldn’t identify where the odor was coming from.  Only one was 

attributed to the landfill and the others to other sources.  The odors reported were methane gas, 

landfill gas, natural gas.  They identified seven potential sites on Applebutter Road where these 

odors could be coming from.     

 Mr. Walter Zagwoski commented about UGI who surveys their lines every 30 days and when they 

get a leak, they fix it instantly.  He said the smell is from the landfill. 

 Ms. Kareen Bleam said she has lived in Steel City for 43 years and never smelled the sewage 

treatment plant nor Praxair in her area.  She commented that once you get into Steel City, you 

smell the landfill.  When she smells it, she reports it to DEP.   

 Ms. Donna Louder asked if Mr. Cahalan had the date of 12/31/13 on the list of DEP reports?  Mr. 

Cahalan said yes.  Ms. Louder said she called DEP that morning at 9:00 am and told them that she 

smelled leachate.  At 11:00 am, DEP and IESI went through Steel City and they smelled burn 

barrels and blamed it on a trash truck going by.  If they were there at 9:00 am, they probably would 

have smelled it also.  She commented how the wind changes all the time.   

 Gordon Gress, Black River Road asked about the progress with the Black River stormwater.  Mr. 

Kocher said they haven’t progressed that much more.  They are waiting to see budget-wise how 

and when it could be built, then they can complete the final design.  Mr. Gress asked if there were 

any grants available.  Mr. Kocher said once they figure out the budget, they can complete the final 

design.   

 

VII. COUNCIL & STAFF REPORTS 

 

A. TOWNSHIP MANAGER (9:18 pm) 

 Mr. Cahalan said he received an email from the LST Historical Society who got a request 

from a group (Goody, Goody) to film a movie at the Schoolhouse.  They pulled out an 

agreement they worked on previously for filming and photo shoots on Township properties 

and the Solicitor looked at it and if it’s okay with Council, they would give this agreement 

to the group to sign.  They would have to put up a security deposit of $500.00 in case of 

damage.   

 

MOTION BY: Mr. Horiszny moved to execute the agreement as stated above with the group called Goody, 

Goody. 

SECOND BY:  Mr. Willard 

Mr. Horiszny asked if anyone had any questions?  No one raised their hand. 

ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Absent – Mr. Kern) 

 

B. COUNCIL 

Mr. Willard 

 He said they had a Neighborhood Watch meeting on April 15
th
 with good representation 

facilitated by Officers Haggerty and Roxberry.  They have a deadline of May 15
th
 for the 



General Business & Developer Meeting    

May 7, 2014 
 

Page 9 of 9 

information that needs to be distributed to the neighbors and Police Department and some 

signage for the neighborhood.  He thanked the Police Department. 

 He said their last meeting was April 23
rd

 for the Economic Development Task Force.  They 

had a presentation of the Master Plan from Lehigh University.  The main agenda item was 

to develop a vision for the Task Force.  The next meeting is May 12
th
 on developing goals 

and objectives. 

 

Mrs. deLeon 

 She said Hellertown-Lower Saucon Chamber of Commerce will have a presentation on 

“Pennsylvania 412 Construction Project”.   PennDOT will be present and it will be held on 

Thursday, May 22
nd

 at 7:30 am at Hellertown Borough Hall. 

 She said the SVC will hold a Barn Photo Workshop on Saturday, May 31
st
 from 9 am to 

noon and it’s $30.00.  Mr. Frank T. Smith, an award-winning photographer will be leading 

the workshop. 

 

Mr. Kern – Absent 

 

Mr. Maxfield  
 He said the Library Board continues to meet and there will be a presentation given Council 

in the near future. 

 

Mr. Horiszny 

 He said he attended the last Economic Development Task Force meeting on April 23
rd

. 

 He attended a presentation given by Representative Justin Simmons and has literature if 

you want to look at it. 

 National Public Weeks Work is May 18
th
 to 24

th
 and he would like to thank the road crew 

for the good work they do. 

 

C.      SOLICITOR – No report 

D. PLANNER – No report 

E. ENGINEER – No report 

 

V. ADJOURNMENT 

 

MOTION BY: Mrs. deLeon moved for adjournment.  The time was 9:28 pm. 

SECOND BY:  Mr. Maxfield 

Mr. Horiszny asked if anyone had any questions?  No one raised their hand. 

ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Absent – Mr. Kern) 

 

Submitted by: 

 

 

________________________________    __________________________________ 

Jack Cahalan       Ron Horiszny     

Township Manager      President of Council 


